1986

# Kathleen Clontz v. Harvey James Clontz : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

The following issues are presented on appeal:

1. That the Trial Court did not award alimony in a twenty-seven (27) year marriage to the spouse that is not working and is disabled, constituted a manifest injustice contrary to Section 30-3-5 of the Utah Code Annotated.

2. That the Trial Court abused its discretion when it did not award a portion of Plaintiff's retirement benefits to Defendant.

3. That due to the Trial Court's distribution of the marital assets, Defendant was not awarded alimony nor a portion of Plaintiff's retirement. He is therefore forced to sell the home awarded to him in order to distribute the equity awarded to Plaintiff which constitutes a manifest injustice contrary to Section 30-3-5 of the Utah Code Annotated.

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a Complaint by Plaintiff/Respondent and an Answer and Counterclaim by Defendant/Appellant, each seeking a Decree of Divorce and an equitable distribution of property and alimony rights. Plaintiff alleged in her Complaint, and Defendant, in his Answer and Counterclaim, that each treated the other cruelly, causing mental anguish and distress.

The Honorable DAVID E. ROTH, sitting without a jury, granted Plaintiff a Decree of Divorce based upon the grounds of mental cruelty. The District Court entered an order regarding the distribution of property and Defendant's right to an alimony award.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

Plaintiff and Defendant were married on the 7th day of March, 1959, in Sunset, Davis County, Utah. There have been five (5) children born as issue of this marriage, but all children are now emancipated. (TR 93)

Plaintiff is employed at Hill Air Force Base and her gross income is over Two Thousand (\$2,000.00) Dollars per month. (TR 103) Plaintiff has accumulated Fifteen Thousand, Eight Hundred Fifty-Six And Eighty-Three/100 (\$15,856.83) Dollars in retirement. (TR 106)

Defendant is medically disabled and receives Civil

Service disability in the amount of Six Hundred Fifty-Five And Forty-Eight/100 (\$655.48) Dollars per month and has no other source of income. (TR 106)

Defendant received an acre of land from his father, before his marriage to Plaintiff . (TR 107) Defendant's father also gave each of Defendant's siblings at this time an acre of land or the sum of Six Hundred (\$600.00) Dollars. (TR 115-116) The estimated value of the land at the time it was distributed was Six Hundred (\$600.00) Dollars. (TR 115) In a prior divorce proceeding, wherein a sibling of Defendant was divorced, the Trial Court held that this land in question was the sibling's separate property as it was an inheritance. (TR 108)

That in 1960 a home was built by the parties upon the property given to Defendant. Presently, the property is unencumbered and the appraised value of the property is Sixty-One Thousand, Five Hundred (\$61,500.00) Dollars. (TR 96-108) The appraised value of the land itself is Sixteen Thousand (\$16,000.00) Dollars. (TR 117)

Plaintiff received between Five Thousand (\$5,000.00) Dollars and Six Thousand (\$6,000.00) Dollars from her parents from the proceeds of the sale of her mother's farm during the marriage of Plaintiff and Defendant. (TR 125)



### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

It is Defendant's position that the Trial Court abused its discretion contrary to U.C.A. § 30-3-5. Defendant was not awarded alimony nor a portion of Plaintiff's retirement fund which would have been equitable in view of Defendant's financial situation and the length of the parties' marriage. When the effect of this inequity is combined with the payment of the Court-awarded equity to Plaintiff within six (6) months from the date of the Order, the effect is evaluated, and this abuse of discretion rises to a level requiring a modification of the Trial Court's Order to ensure that a manifest injustice does not occur.

### ARGUMENT

#### Point I

THE TRIAL COURT'S NON-ORDER OF ALIMONY  
TO DEFENDANT INDICATES A MANIFEST INJUSTICE  
CONTRARY TO § 30-3-5 U.C.A. 1953 AND  
CONSTITUTES AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION

"There is no fixed formula which a trial judge in a divorce action must follow in making divisions of properties, but it is the prerogative of the Court to make whatever disposition it deems fair, equitable, and necessary for the protection and welfare of the parties."

Berry v. Berry, 635 P. 2d 68 (Utah 1981).

The Court will not disturb a Trial Court's Findings and Judgment merely because it might have viewed the matter

differently, but would do so only if it appeared that the evidence clearly preponderates against the Trial Court's findings, or that the Trial Court misapplied the law, or abused its discretion, so that an injustice has resulted. It is the Trial Court's duty to do a division of property and income in a divorce proceeding so that the parties may readjust their lives to the new situation as well as possible, but there is no fixed rule or formula for the distribution of a marital estate. Turner v. Turner, 649 P. 2d 6 (Utah 1982). However, it is the duty and prerogative of the Court in equity matters, where the occasion warrants, and after a review of both the facts and the law, to fashion its own remedy as a substitution for the judgment of the Trial Court. Penrose v. Penrose, 656 P. 2d 1019 (Utah 1982).

In the present case, the Trial Court abused its discretion when it did not award alimony to the disabled husband. In MacDonald v. MacDonald, 236 P. 2d 1066 (Utah 1951), the Court held that where there are sufficient assets and income to do so, a wife against whom a divorce decree has been entered is entitled to be provided for according to her station in life and as demanded by her condition of health and lack of ability to work. The facts in the present case are that it is the husband who is disabled and

is in ill health who needs to be provided for according to his station in life. The MacDonald case should be applied regardless of the gender of the spouse and as long as the circumstance of lack of ability to work and the need to maintain the current station in life are met. This would be especially true in a marriage of long duration such as the present one.

The Court observed in Gramme v. Gramme, 587 P. 2d 144 (Utah 1978), that:

"...the purpose of alimony is to provide post-marital support; it is intended neither as a penalty imposed on the husband nor as a reward granted to the wife. Its function is to provide support for the wife as nearly as possible at the standard of living she enjoyed during the marriage to prevent her from becoming a public charge. Important criteria in delivering a reasonable award for support and maintenance are the financial conditions and needs of the wife, considering her station in life; her ability to produce sufficient income for herself; and the ability of the husband to provide support."

In the present case, because the Trial Court did not award alimony, Defendant will be deprived of his home and other luxuries that were the culmination of the parties' joint efforts over the continuation of their marriage. It is the responsibility of the Trial Court to endeavor to provide a just and equitable adjustment of their economic

resources so that the parties might reconstruct their lives on a happy and useful basis. Searle v. Searle, 522 P. 2d 697 (Utah 1974). In a dissolution of a marriage of a substantial duration, the objective is that parties separate on as equal a basis as possible.

In the present situation, the facts are that Plaintiff had a gross income of over Two Thousand (\$2,000.00) Dollars per month and that Defendant receives a disability retirement in the sum of Six Hundred Fifty-Five And Forty-Eight/100 (\$655.48) Dollars per month. Defendant testified that his expenses are over One Thousand (\$1,000.00) Dollars per month. It is apparent that it will be impossible for Defendant to meet his financial obligations on his limited income alone. In English v. English, 565 P.2d 409 (Utah 1977), the Court pointed out that the criteria considered in determining a reasonable award for support and maintenance include financial conditions and needs of the wife, ability of wife to produce a sufficient income for herself, and the ability of the husband to provide support. In the present case, the Trial Court specifically did not award alimony and indicated that if Defendant needed more money to meet his expenses he would have to go out and find a job. The Trial Court made this ruling despite uncontroverted evidence that Defendant had

been medically retired since 1977.

In Bushell v. Bushell, 649 P. 2d 85 (Utah 1983), the Trial Court cited Gramme when the ex-wife testified at trial that she needed alimony to repair the roof on her home, to pay the utilities, and to obtain additional training so that she could secure a job which pays adequately. The Court considered her financial conditions and needs and found that:

"The purpose of alimony is to provide support for a wife as nearly as possible at the standard of living she enjoyed during marriage and to prevent her from becoming a public charge."

Gramme v. Gramme, supra.

In the present case, the facts are similar to Bushell. Defendant testified to his expenses, and he testified that he would need alimony to meet his obligations. The Trial Court in its summation did not award alimony and further found that "to get by" Defendant would need to get a job.

The Trial Court appears to disregard the observation of the Court in Gramme that alimony is not a reward, nor a penalty, and that an award of alimony should not be included as a marital asset, because it is a post-marital duty of support and maintenance. Fletcher v. Fletcher, 615 P. 2d 1223 (Utah 1980). This seems especially true in light of the fact that the Trial Court realized that Defendant could

not meet his expenses without additional income of any sort. At the very least, it appears to be an abuse of discretion in that the Trial Court did not award alimony to help maintain Defendant's financial obligations until he could secure employment. In a recent Supreme Court case, Claus v. Claus, 39 Utah Adv. Rep. 22 (1986), the parties were married for approximately four and one-half (4 1/2) years before their separation. The Trial Court awarded alimony to the wife and the Court found no abuse of discretion in the Trial Court's award of twelve (12) month's alimony to provide a cushion to Defendant to return to a self-sustaining status. Both parties brought property to the marriage and the Court found that the wife was employable. The Claus case is almost exactly on point to the present case. Defendant needs a "cushion" until he can secure employment.

In MacDonald, Defendant made the argument that:

"...she was entitled to be provided for according to her station in life and as demanded by her condition of health and lack of ability to work; that she should not be cast aside in her helpless condition to 'sink or swim' or depend on others."

The Court agreed with the argument and added that this was part of the continuing responsibility of the marriage covenant: "...in sickness, in health; for better or worse...", which cannot be entirely avoided, even by divorce. In the present case, it appears that Defendant is

expected to do just that..."sink or swim".

The Court found in Higley v. Higley, 676 P. 2d 379 (Utah 1983), that an award of only One Hundred (\$100.00) Dollars per month alimony was an abuse of discretion because it would not afford the wife a standard of living close to the standard of living enjoyed by the parties during the marriage. This was a thirty (30) year marriage and the husband's gross income was Twenty-Four Thousand, Three Hundred Fifty-Six And Eight/100 (\$24,356.80) Dollars per year. The Court found that the husband had the ability to provide permanent support in an amount greater than One Hundred (\$100.00) Dollars per month.

Although Defendant in this case does have another source of income besides Plaintiff's salary, the Court held in Frank v. Frank, 585 P. 2d 453 (Utah 1978), the fact that the divorced wife has some property or other means to support herself should not preclude an allowance of alimony if husband has far superior resources.

In the instant case, Defendant does have a small income, but as stated before, the Trial Court realized that it was not enough for Defendant "to get by". In Frank, the Trial Court's memorandum decision stated as follows:

"...It is true that the plaintiff through enterprise and perhaps necessity, does have a far better income than the average wife this Court sees. Moreover, the Court acknowledges that in

one sense plaintiff does not need alimony in that she could probably subsist without it, and in fact, has done so for approximately the last two years. However, and despite the foregoing, the Court feels wholly justified in making the alimony award it has and believes this award is amply supportable under guidelines laid down in numerous decisions of our Supreme Court. In making that award the Court has considered, among other things, (1) the length of this marriage, (2) plaintiff's assistance to defendant during the lean years from June 1955 to 1970 and during which defendant prepared himself for his present profession of cardiovascular surgery and particularly, (3) the present disparity in the plaintiff's and defendant's income and the disparity in their income potential."

Frank v. Frank, supra.

Defendant appealed this award of alimony upon the statement: "...that in one sense plaintiff does not need alimony." The Court denied Defendant's appeal and wondered:

"...How the defendant, or any one on his behalf, could even suggest that a wife who had devoted 21 years of her marriage and reared a family should be turned out to subsist on her own is as discordant to our sense of justice as it was to the trial judge. The second is that notwithstanding the remark just referred to, the judge continued on, stating that he 'feels wholly justified in making the alimony award' and proceeded to enunciate the factors he properly considered in such justification."

Frank v. Frank, supra.

Further, the Court found that the fact that Plaintiff



has some property or other means to support herself should not preclude an allowance where the husband had far superior resources.

In the present case, if the Frank alimony guidelines are taken into account by the Court, it will find that the parties have a twenty-seven (27) year marriage, as opposed to the Frank's twenty-one (21) year marriage; that a disparity in the incomes are present because Plaintiff is gainfully employed and Defendant is receiving a disability income; that this disparity will be continuing because Defendant's income potential is low due to a permanent disability since 1977; and lastly, Plaintiff's resources are far superior to Defendant's because Plaintiff's income is over three (3) times greater than Defendant's monthly disability allotment. The Trial Court should have considered the Frank criteria and awarded Defendant a reasonable sum of alimony for a reasonable period of time.

The fact that the Trial Court realized that Defendant needed additional income "to get by", constituted a manifest injustice contrary to § 30-3-5 at the U.C.A. In Delatore v. Delatore, 680 P. 2d 27 (Utah 1984), the Trial Court found that the wife was employable and had actually worked during part of the marriage. Although the marriage was of short duration, just three and one-half (3 1/2) years, the Trial Court awarded alimony for a period of twenty-four (24)

months and the Court again upheld this award.

In light of the non-award of alimony and the preceding case law, it is evident that the Trial Court abused its discretion and Defendant should be entitled to an award of alimony.

#### Point II

THE TRIAL COURT'S DISTRIBUTION OF THE  
RETIREMENT INDICATES A MANIFEST INJUSTICE CONTRARY  
TO § 30-3-5 U.C.A. 1953 AND CONSTITUTES  
AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION

In this divorce action, the Trial Court did not consider Plaintiff's retirement fund as a marital asset to be divided between the parties. In Dogu v. Dogu, 652 P. 2d 1308 (Utah 1982), the Court cited Englert v. Englert, 576 P. 2d 1279 (Utah 1978), and held that the Trial Court's duty to make an equitable division of property in a divorce action:

"...encompasses all of the assets of every nature possessed by the parties, whenever obtained and from whatever source derived; and that this includes any such pension fund or insurance."

The Trial Court should have awarded a portion of Plaintiff's retirement fund to Defendant as a marital asset although Plaintiff has not yet retired and her actual enjoyment of this benefit is purely prospective. The value of Plaintiff's retirement is Fifteen Thousand, Eight Hundred Fifty-Six And Eighty-Three/100 (\$15,856.83) Dollars, and Defendant should be entitled to one-half (1/2) of this

amount as of the date of the divorce. In Dogu the Court held that TIAA and CREF accounts, a Keogh account, and a pension and profit-sharing trust were marital assets and that the Trial Court was required to consider these in its determination of an equitable property division between the parties.

As the Court said in DeRose v. DeRose, 426 P. 2d 221, 222 (Utah 1967):

"[W]hile the determinations of the trial court are given deference and not disturbed lightly, changes should be made if that seems essential to the accomplishment of the desired objectives of the decree: that is, to make such an arrangement of the property and economic resources of the parties that they will have the best possible opportunity to reconstruct their lives on a happy and useful basis for themselves and their children."

The present case appears to be such a case. The equitable thing to do would be to award Defendant his share of Plaintiff's retirement benefits and offset this amount against Plaintiff's share of the Trial Court's determined equity of the marital property.

In the Trial Court's summation, the Court appeared to find that Defendant's right to receive Civil Service Disability income offsets his entitlement to Plaintiff's retirement as a marital asset. There are flaws in the Trial Court's reasoning because of several factors. First of all, Defendant's right to receive his disability income at this

point in his life would more appropriately be considered an income or earnings on a monthly basis. He is accruing no retirement benefits at this time, nor is he in a financial position to put any money aside to build a nest egg or to save for emergencies. He is merely existing on this limited amount of money.

Plaintiff, on the other hand, is earning not only a substantial monthly salary, but accruing retirement benefits at the same time. Her retirement fund is growing, and the size of her paycheck makes it possible for her to save additional sums or to put away for unforeseen expenses. Hence, awarding Defendant one-half (1/2) of Plaintiff's retirement fund which has accrued to date should not be offset against Defendant's disability retirement because at this point in time he has accrued no retirement fund per se, he only has the right to receive the income as long as he is disabled.

Looking at civil service benefits from Plaintiff's view, typically inherent in Civil Service Disability benefits are the surviving spouse's rights to these benefits upon the death of the party eligible to receive them. Title 5 U.S.C.S. 8341 (1980). Defendant's portion of the disability pay is set aside each month for the surviving spouse. Viewed in this light, Plaintiff would herself be entitled to this "marital asset" of Defendant's civil

service disability regardless of any amount of retirement she has accrued herself. (Of course, taking into consideration that if Plaintiff is divorced from Defendant, she would not receive any benefits upon Defendant's death. This argument is presented only to show the inequity of the Trial Court's findings and the disparity between the treatment of the two (2) different retirement types, and the fact that Defendant, if still married to Plaintiff at the time of her death would not necessarily be entitled to her accrued retirement benefits, as she would be to his.)

It is inequitable that Plaintiff has an inherent right to Defendant's benefits if married; yet, on the other hand, in the Trial Court's view Defendant does not have the absolute right to property accrued during the marriage either at the death of Plaintiff if still married, or in divorce where the property is typically divided between the parties at the time the marriage is terminated.

Secondly, the Trial Court indicated that Defendant's civil service disability or his right to receive it has a value:

"...upwards of around Fifty  
Thousand (\$50,000.00) Dollars..."

(TR 136)

The Court further indicated that it would not "charge" Defendant for this valued amount, and it will offset the parties' right to the two (2) retirements against each

other's retirement. Again, the Trial Court does not take into consideration that Defendant's disability income is his only income and he is not accruing retirement, while Plaintiff is earning three (3) times what Defendant is making, and accruing retirement at the same time. Appropriately, the Trial Court should offset Plaintiff's salary against Defendant's disability income. Plaintiff should be "charged" the full value of her gross income of upwards of Two Thousand (\$2,000.00) Dollars per month, because in the six and one-half (6 1/2) years it would take Defendant to have received the Fifty Thousand (\$50,000.00), that the Trial Court has assigned as the value of Defendant's disability income, Plaintiff would have earned more than One Hundred Fifty Thousand (\$150,000.00) Dollars, and also accrued additional retirement benefits on top of that.

In the interest of equity, it seems only fair that the Trial Court should have ordered Defendant entitled to the sum of Seven Thousand, Nine Hundred Twenty-Eight And Forty-Two/100 (\$7,928.42) Dollars, which represents his share of Plaintiff's retirement benefits accrued during the twenty-seven (27) year marriage.

### Point III

THE TRIAL COURT'S AWARD OF  
THE COURT-DETERMINED EQUITY IN THE MARITAL HOME OF  
TWENTY-THREE THOUSAND, TWO HUNDRED FIFTY (\$23,250.00)  
DOLLARS TO PLAINTIFF AND ITS PAYMENT BY

DEFENDANT WITHIN SIX (6) MONTHS THEREFROM IS  
A MANIFEST INJUSTICE CONTRARY TO § 30-3-5 U.C.A. 1953

While determinations of the Trial Court are given deference and not disturbed lightly, changes should be made if that seems essential to accomplishment of desired objectives of divorce decree; i.e., to make such an arrangement of the property and economic resources of the parties that they will have the best possible opportunity to reconstruct their lives on a happy mutual basis for themselves and their children. Dogu v. Dogu, supra.

In the present case, because of the Trial Court award of equity to Plaintiff in the amount of Twenty-Three Thousand, Two Hundred Fifty (\$23,250.00) Dollars and its payment by Defendant to Plaintiff within six (6) months, Defendant is forced to sell or mortgage his home. The award and time frame are especially unjust if Defendant is not able to mortgage his home, which is most likely in view of his limited income situation and his monthly obligations. There is little possibility that a lending institution would consider financing a loan for Defendant in view of Defendant's precarious financial situation in that his bills vastly exceed his income. Defendant's only other alternative would be to sell the home. The sale of this home which sits upon land given to Defendant by his father prior to his marriage to Plaintiff, seems particularly unjust and inequitable because the Trial Court has failed to

give sufficient weight and consideration to Defendant's financial situation and has left Defendant with no alternatives in regard to the Order which was placed upon Defendant by the Trial Court itself.

In the Gramme case, the Court found that the responsibility of the Trial Court is to endeavor to provide a just and equitable adjustment of the parties' economic recourses. In the present case, Defendant is deprived of his home and indeed is left to "sink or swim" by the Trial Court's award of equity to Plaintiff and its payment of same within six (6) months. Defendant's financial circumstances should have been a consideration of the Trial Court when making its Order. If the Trial Court did consider Defendant's circumstances, when making the Order, then an abuse of discretion must be found. But, on the other hand, if the Trial Court did not consider Defendant's finances in making its Order, then a serious inequity has resulted and a modification must be implemented.

#### CONCLUSION