1986

# Kathleen Clontz v. Harvey James Clontz : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is an action for divorce and for division of assets of the parties.

DISPOSITION OF LOWER COURT

On a hearing held in the Lower Court before the Honorable David E. Roth, the Court decreed a Decree of Divorce to the Respondent and made a division of all of the assets of the parties, Appellant and Respondent, after a complete due process hearing, with both parties testifying and being represented by competent counsel.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The Respondent seeks affirmation of the Judgment of the Lower Court as to the granting to the Respondent of a Decree of Divorce and as to the division of the property, including real, personal and retirement benefits of the parties as decided by the Court.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Plaintiff and Respondent is the wife, and will be hereinafter referred to as "wife", while the Defendant and Appellant is the husband and will hereinafter be referred to herein as "husband".

The wife and husband were intermarried on the 7th day of March, 1959 in Sunset, Davis County, Utah, and there was born as issue of the marriage five (5) children, all of whom are now emancipated. (TR-93)

The husband is retired from Hill Field and is receiving the sum of \$650.00 a month for retirement. (R-65)

The husband was employed as a security guard since his retirement in 1984 and 1985 and terminated his employment as the husband did not feel he was earning enough to bother working, although he made \$1,300.00 in three (3) months employment, and has not since obtained any employment. (TR-123-124)

In 1960, a home was built by the parties, which property is presently toally unencumbered and has an appraised value agreed upon, after professional appriasal, as valued at \$61,500.00. (TR-96-108)

The Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law set forth an equitable division of all of the assets of the parties,

including the equity in the home, the real and personal property and the denial of alimony to either of the parties and evaluated the retirement of both of the parties, finding that the present value of the wife's retirement was approximately \$15,000.00, and that the value of the husband's retirement was \$50,000.00. (R-62-70)

The Court thereupon did then issue a Decree of Divorce which was drafted by the attorney for the wife, Pete N. Vlahos, and approved as to form by the attorney for the husband, John Blair Hutchison.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

There is no evidence whatsoever to support the allegation of the husband that there has been an abuse of discretion by the Court as to the division of the real and personal property assets of the parties and in the Court awarding to each of the parties the benefits of each of the parties retaining their own retirement funds.

The property distribution ordered by the Court was an equal distribution of all of the real and personal property assets of the parties, and the award made by the Court in denying alimony, either temporary or permanent, to each of the parties and in ordering each of the parties to be allowed to retain their retirement benefits, with the Court

equating the known value of the retirement of the husband, together with his ability to earn additional funds and being employable as against the present value of the wife's retirement.

#### ARGUMENT

##### POINT I.

THE JUDGMENT OF THE LOWER COURT SHOULD PREVAIL UNLESS THERE HAS BEEN AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION OR EVIDENCE THAT MANIFESTS INJUSTICE OR INEQUITY.

This Court stated in Hansen vs. Hansen, 537 P.2d 491 (Supreme Court of Utah, June 25, 1975):

"In a divorce action, the Trial Court has considerable latitude of discretion in adjusting financial and property interest. The burden is upon the Appellant to prove that there was a misunderstanding or misapplication of the law, resulting in substantial and prejudicial error; or that the evidence clearly preponderates against the findings as made; or a serious inequity has resulted as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion."

This Court in Jeppson vs. Jeppson, 684 P.2d 69 (Supreme Court of Utah, 1984) stated the position that the Judgment of the Lower Court will not be disturbed unless the evidence clearly preponderates to the contrary or unless the Trial Court abuses its discretion or misapplies principles of law.



The Court, in the instant matter before it, granted the divorce to the wife and issued a Restraining Order as against the husband, finding adequate grounds for granting of a divorce to the wife and not to the husband.

The Court, using the valuation of the property as determined by a competent appraiser and recognized by counsel for both parties as an acceptable appraiser, showed the property to be valued at \$65,576.00, the Court found that the value of the land, which was given to both of the parties in 1960, had a value of \$600.00, but the Court allowed a deduction of \$16,000.00 from the value of the property in granting the husband the additional value of the land, arriving at a net equity, in computing the division of the value of the home, at \$46,500.00, and awarding the home to the husband and giving the wife a lien against the property in the amount of \$23,250.00. (TR-135)

The Court finding that there is no lien against the home and that there were no minor children, in that all five (5) children were emancipated, that the wife would be entitled to her money out of the home within six (6) months, the Court finding that the husband could either mortgage the house, which has no lien against it and was valued at \$61,500.00, or do whatever was necessary to cash out the

wife so she could acquire a place of residence of her own.  
(TR-135)

The Court having found that the husband is employable and has been employed since his retirement to add to his retirement income, ordered the wife to pay the husband's \$800.00 attorney's fees and to maintain the husband on the wife's health and accident insurance as long as available through her employment. (TR-136)

The Court further found, looking at the list of personal property and the values placed there by the parties, that each should keep the properties which they have listed and each should pay for their own motor vehicles, and found that the values of the properties awarded to each of the parties was approximately a wash out. (TR-136-140)

This Court in Burger vs. Burger declared that although a divorce action is an action in equity and that the Supreme Court is free to review both the law and the facts, that the Utah Constitution, Article VIII., Section 9 thereof, requires a Court to place a presumption of validity upon the Trial Court's action in divorce cases, thereby throwing the burden on the Appellant (husband) to show error, and that the Court will not overturn the Trial Court's Findings of Fact unless they are found to be contrary to the clear

preponderance of the evidence. The Court thereafter cited Mitchell vs. Mitchell, 527 P.2d 1359, Utah Supreme Court, 1974; Harding vs. Harding, 26 Utah 2d 277, 488 P.2d 308 (1971); Wiese vs. Wiese, 24 Utah 2nd 236, 469 P.2d 504 (1970).

Unlike the case of Burger vs. Burger, there was no corporate stock, business partnerships or other controversial items to be divided as between the parties.

This Court in Tremayne vs. Tremayne, 211 P.2d 452, Supreme Court of Utah, November 18, 1949, decreed that where a divorce is granted, the Court may make such order in relation to the property as may be equitable. The matter is in the discretion of the Trial Court, which will not be disturbed unless the Court abuses its discretion. The facts in each divorce case are different and each may be determined on what is equitable to the parties under the facts of the case.

This Court in Woodward vs. Woodward, 656 P.2d 431 (November 4, 1982), in arriving at its conclusions in the Woodward case, reversed the Bennett vs. Bennett case, 607 P.2d 839 (1980), and also made distinctive modifications in Dogu vs. Dogu, 652 P.2d 1308 (1982) and in Englert vs. Englert, 576 P.2d 1274, Supreme Court of Utah, 1978. The

Court, in the instant matter, considered the retirement fund of the husband, who had been retired for a period of time and was receiving a specific sum of money, and considered the value of the husband's retirement at being \$50,000.00, (R-65) and the present value of the vested retirement of the wife being in the sum of \$15,000.00, (R-65) and in so considering both, recognized the right of the parties to consider, as an economic resource, the retirement of each of the parties, and this Court stated the essential criterion is whether right to the benefit of a retirement or asset is accrued in whole or in part during the marriage and to that extent that the right is so accrued, that it is subject to equitable distribution. This Court further stated in the Woodward case by adopting the criterion of the case of Kikkert vs. Kikkert, 177 New Jersey, super., 471, 427 A.2d 76 (1981), with the Court stating:

"We agree that with the discussion in Kikkert, supra, where it was stated:

Long term and deferred sharing of financial interests are obviously too susceptible to continued strife and hostility, circumstances which are of course traditionally strived to avoid to the greatest extent possible. This goal may be best accomplished, if a present value of the pension plan is ascertainable, by fixing the other spouses's

share thereof, as adjusted for all appropriate considerations, including the length of time the pensionor must survive to enjoy its benefits, to be satisfied out of other assets, leaving all pension benefits to the employee himself."

This is a position which the Court in the instant matter has taken by determining the value of the retirement, which was determinable, and allowing each of the parties to retain their retirement funds. The Court in Woodward further stated:

"On the other hand, where other assets for equitable distribution are inadequate or lacking all together, or where no present value can be established and the parties are unable to reach an agreement, resort must be had to a form of deferred distribution based upon fixed percentages."

It is submitted to the Court that the values was determined determinable, and there was not an inadequacy of other assets to distribute as between the parties, with the husband, as a matter of fact, getting a greater share of the equity in the home than the wife, as well as there being an equitable distribution and division of all of the other assets of the marriage.